
ABSTRACT 
WA-1-329 
Hoff er-Eby Farm 
Cearfoss Vicinity 
private 

Early 19th Century 

lbis early 19th century farm is improved with a 
, ·'.\!ae and a half story stone house, a two story, four bay 

house possibly of log construction sheathed with compo­
sition siding and a large frame bank barn. The exterior 
appearance of the first house suggests a building d~te 
during the 1820's, while the possible log house with its 
early brick wing may have been built during the first 
quarter of the 19th century. The barn appears much later. 
lbe complex is significant as an illustration of Washington 
County's 19th century construction. The group is also 
significant as the site of a distillery which operated here 
during the first quarter of the 19th cent~ry. The distillery 
was owned by Michael Hof fer whose family held this farm until 
1841. 
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B DESCRIPTION 

-EXCELLENT 

&ooo 
_fAIR 

CONDITION 

_DETERIORATED 

_RUINS 

_UNEXPOSED 

CHECK ONE 

_UNALTERED 

LLTERED < 50-X. 

CHECK ONE 

X...ORIGINAL SITE 

-MOVED OAT~--

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT ANO ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This farm group is located on the west side of the Williamsport-Greencastle (Pa.) Pike, Mary­
land route 63, about one mile south of Cearfoss in Washington County, Maryland. The canplex 
includes two houses and a barn. One house faces south, the otlaer north a~ the barn faces 
southeast. 

The first building to be described ia a one and a half story stone dwelling which ia situated 
on an area of level ground and faces south. It ia a two bay structure built of roughly 
coursed native limestone. Attached to its east end wall is a two story, one bay frame addi.:. 
tion covered with composition aiding. A.porch included under the main roof apan extends along 
the entire front or south elevation. 

Windows in the atoaa section have very wide frames joined at the corners with wooden pegs. 
!ibst hold two over two pane late 19th century period double hung sashes. One six over six 
light sash ia used. A half window at the ground story in the rear or north elevation has 
been closed with brick. There is no decorative masonry or woodwork trim associated with the 
windows and doors. 

The roof is sheathed with sheet metal and extends beJl'Olld the end walls. At the west end where 
the roof overhangs the porch, the area between the return and the rafters is filled with brick. 
Brick chimneys extend from inside the end wlls. 

The second building in the complex ia a two story, four bay clvelling sheathed with composition 
siding. Although its-wall construction was not observed, thickness of door and window jambs 
suggests that it may be built of logs. It rests on atone foundations and faces north. Ex­
tending to the south is a one story brick wing. To the east end wall is attached a long, 
narrow, one story, three bay brick extension set on high fieldstone foundati~I!· The- wing 
apparently was built in two sections as shown by a break in the walls between the first and 
second bays from its 1'est end. The eastern two bays of the wing would appear to be older as 
evidenced by the earlier type of door and window frames used in the foundations. Flemish bond 
brick work is used in the north and east elevations. Double windows in its north elevation 
each having single pane sashes, have replaced the original openings. A brick chiumey ia lo­
cated inside the east end wall while a smaller brick flue extends from the point where the 
addition linking the wing to the main house is attached. 

The exterior appearance of the main house ia essentially turn of the century, as indicated by 
the style of window architraves, the two over two aashu, the small brick chinmeys and the 
porch supported by turned posts with brackets. It would aean, however, that these features 
are not original. The main entrance ia located in the west end bay of the front elevation. 
Above the door is a transom with radiating muntins. 

North of the two houses on the side of a hill is a large frame bank barn with decorative metal 
ventilators. It appears nuch newer than the two houses and may date from the late 19th or 
early 20th century. 

The buildings appear to be in good condition and are located on a farm containing 87.55 e-ea. 
The property incltJdes parts of the land grants, ''Marlborough Fields" and ''Friendship." 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 



. II SIGNIFICANCE 

- PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW 

_PREHISTORIC _.ARCHEOLU<iY-PREHISTORIC _COMMUNITY PLANNING 

_ 1400-1499 _.ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC _CONSERVATION 

_1500-1599 LGRICULTURI; _ECONOMICS 

_1600-1699 LRCHITECTURE _EDUCATION 

- 1700-1 799 _.ART 
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_1900. y _COMMUNICATIONS 

_ENGINEERING 

_EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT 

~NDUSTRY 
_INVENTION 

_LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE _RELIGION 

. _[AW - _SCIENCE 

_LITERATURE _SCULPTURE 

_MILITARY -SOCIAUHUMANITARIAN 

_MUSIC 

_PHILOSOPHY 

_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT 

_THEATER 

_TRANSPORTATION 

_OTHER !SPECIFY) 

SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ ARCHITECT 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Thia early 19th century farm ia improved with a one and a half story atone house, a two story, 
four bay house possibly of log construction sheathed with composition aicling and a large frame 
bank barn. The exterior appearance of the first boue auggeata a building date during the 
1820' a, while the possible log house with its early brick wing may have been built during the 
first quarter of the 19th century. The barn appears much later. The complex ia significant 
as an illustration of Washington County's 19th century construction. The group ia also sig­
nificant aa the site of a distillery 'tlhich operated here during the first quarter of the 19th 

, century. The distillery was omecl by Michael Hoffer vhoee family held this farm until 1841. -I1 !a will made in 1823, Michael Hoffer provides his wife Elizabeth with the use of three 
rooms in the ''wing" until such time aa the property was sold. There ia no further description 
of the building, but the wing could refer to the brick etructure attached to the main dwelling 
Michael Boffer'a widow and heirs held the property until 1841 when it was sold to Christian 
Negley and George Fouke, 1llao owned it briefly, selling to John P. Stotler in 1843. Por most 
of the second half of the 19th century, the property vaa owned b~ Chriatiim Kee~« and then 
during most. of the fkat half o.£ the 20th century by George W. Shinham. It was bought by the 
presmt.om•• in i.956. (YY/443, 01111./105, Dl5/32, 98/236, 100/212, 260/202). 

It cannot be determined from information available at present ,.bather _the distillery contin­
ued to operat~ after Michael Boffer'a death. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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lriJGEOGRAPHICALDATA 
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 87 .55 acres 

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARfES 

STATE COUNTY . 

STATE COuNTY 

mFORM PREPARED BY 
NAME I TIJ"LE 

Paula Stoner Dickey, Connl.tant 
ORGANIZATION 

Washington County R:l.storical Sltea Survey . 
STREET & NUMBER 

County Office Building, 33 West Washington Street 
CITY OR TOWN 

Hagerstown 

DATE 

August 1977 
TELEPHONE 

.791-3065 
STATE 

Maryland 21740 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust 
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 
(301) 267-1438 
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